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215 Lafayette Street. Zillow.com.

The house currently standing at 215 Lafayette Street in Salem was built in 1926. Like 

many south Salem homes, it is an example of the Colonial Revival architectural style. The 

building, which features a hipped roof, is comprised of a two-story, five-bay main structure with 

a one-story ell attached on either side. Its main entrance is through a glazed exterior vestibule 

adorned with corner pilasters. Although the house was built in the 1920s, a history of the 

property must begin a bit earlier in order to do its story any justice.1

If you stood in front of 215 Lafayette Street in the final years of the nineteenth century, you 

wouldn’t be looking at a two-story family home, but at an imposing brick edifice that housed

1 215 Lafayette Street Property Card, 12/20/1988, City of Salem; Salem Directories, 1926 and 1929; Massachusetts
Cultural Resource Information System (MACRIS) Inventory SAL.2108, May 1989, Massachusetts Historical
Commission.
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the Salem City Orphan Asylum. The City Orphan Asylum’s beginnings can be traced to 1866, 

when a Salem tanner named Thomas Looby purchased a house on the corner of Washington and 

Bridge Streets in order for the Sisters of Charity to shelter and care for the community’s orphans. 

The establishment was incorporated as the City Orphan Asylum on February 3, 1871 “for the 

maintenance, care and education of orphan children and for visiting the sick and instructing the 

ignorant and for the promotion of learning virtue and piety in the City of Salem . . . ” Within a 

few years, the organization moved to a larger building on Lafayette Street. By 1908, the City 

Orphan Asylum at 215 Lafayette Street was being run by Sisters of the Grey Nuns who cared for 

one hundred and twenty-five children and twenty-two “aged and invalid adults.”2

Atlas of Salem, 1897. Essex County Registry of Deeds.

2 Salem Directory, 1895; Visitors’ Guide to Salem (Salem: The Essex Institute, 1908); Essex County Registry of
Deeds (ECRD) Book 816, Page 105; Atlas of Salem, 1874, Essex County Registry of Deeds (ECRD).
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Salem Directory, 1897. Ancestry.com.

Postcard depicting the Salem City Orphan Asylum, post marked 1908. Salem State University Archives.

City Orphan Asylum float, Town House Square, Salem, 1909. Salem State University Archives.
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Unfortunately the move to Lafayette Street was an ill-fated one. On the afternoon of June

25, 1914, a fire broke out in a shed at the Korn leather factory on Boston Street. Although it is

unclear what initially sparked the flame, barrels of acetone, amalacitate, and alcohol stored in the

shed quickly ignited, causing several explosions. An alarm was pulled at box 48 at 1:37pm and,

soon thereafter, strong breezes carried the blaze south on Boston Street. The city was suddenly in

the midst of one of its most traumatic and transformative events: the Great Salem Fire. As the

flames continued southward, a large swath of Lafayette Street, including the City Orphan

Asylum, burnt to the ground.3

Ruins of the Korn leather factory after the Great Salem Fire. Salem State University Archives.

3 Arthur B. Jones, The Salem Fire (Boston: The Gorham Press, 1914); Report of Salem Rebuilding Commission
(Salem: Newcomb & Gauss, 1917); Data on Burned District at Salem, Mass. (Boston: The F. W. Dodge Company,
1914); Neil H. Dempsey, “Events begin this weekend to remember Great Salem Fire,” The Salem News (Salem,
MA), Jun. 17, 2014; “Stories of Recovery after the Great Salem Fire of 1914,” Preserving Salem, City of Salem,
https://www.preservingsalem.com/salemfire1914.
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Ruins of the City Orphan Asylum after the Great Salem Fire. Salem State University Archives.

Although the building at 215 Lafayette Street was utterly destroyed, none of its occupants 

were harmed due to a heroic and swift effort led by Father J. J. Herlihy and Sexton Patrick Quinn 

of Salem’s Church of the Immaculate Conception. Father Herlihy arranged for several cars to 

meet at the orphanage while he, Quinn, and a group of volunteers rushed twenty-five nuns, over 

one hundred children, and about twelve elderly women out of the building, many having to be 

“literally carried.” When the orphanage was empty and the group was ready to flee, only one 

escape route down Hancock Street remained. The Salem Evening News reported that if the rescue 

team had taken “a few minutes more . . . it would have been too late.”4

4 Data on Burned District; “Orphans Removed from Home in Nick of Time,” The Salem Evening News (Salem,
MA), Jun. 26, 1914.
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“Children from Orphan Asylum taken to safety in automobiles.” Salem State University Archives.

After raging for thirteen hours, the Great Salem Fire leveled over 250 acres a half mile 

wide and over a mile long. Three people died and two were reported missing. Eighteen thousand 

Salemites were homeless, and 10,000 were out of a job. Over 1,700 buildings were destroyed. 

According to a 1917 report by the Salem Rebuilding Commission, the flames made “a clean 

sweep, with nothing left but crumbling brick walls and charred skeletons of trees.”5

5 Report of Salem Rebuilding Commission; Jones, The Salem Fire; “Events begin this weekend to remember Great
Salem Fire,” The Salem News.
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Aerial view of fire destruction, June 26, 1914. Photo by George T. Murray. Phillips Library, Peabody 
Essex Museum.

Two days after the fire, about seventy-five children from the City Orphan Asylum who 

had not been collected by friends or family were transferred from St. John’s Preparatory 

College (now School) in Danvers, where they had been temporarily removed to safety, to the 

Home for Destitute Children at 788 Harrison Avenue in Boston. Although the city immediately 

embarked on an aggressive rebuilding campaign, the orphanage at 215 Lafayette Street would 

not be rebuilt, and the property remained unoccupied for over a decade.6

On December 30, 1925, the City Orphan Asylum sold the vacant lot to brothers Charles, 

Maurice, and Joseph Wineapple of Salem. The Wineapples, who made the purchase as an

6 “City Orphans Sent to Boston,” The Salem Evening News (Salem, MA), Jun. 29, 1914; “Orphans Removed from
Home in Nick of Time;” Report of Salem Rebuilding Commission; ECRD Book 2669, Page 86.
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investment in the redevelopment of the area, had the property surveyed and split into sixteen lots, 

creating a new subdivision called “Saltonstall Park.” The lots were divided by a new street named 

“Saltonstall Parkway,” which provided easy access to Lafayette Street. In January 1926, the 

Wineapples sold lots 1 and 2 on the north side of Saltonstall Parkway and bordering Lafayette 

Street to Susan E. Sullivan of New York City.7

“Subdivision of ‘Saltonstall Park’ Salem, Mass. Owned by Wineapple Bro’s,” December 1926. Essex
County Registry of Deeds.

Susan Sullivan lived in New York when she purchased property in Saltonstall Park, but

she was originally from Salem, born Susan E. Ryan on January 5, 1863. Her parents James Ryan

and Anna McMahon Ryan were both born in Ireland. In the 1860s, James was employed as a

tanner and the family was probably living on Putnam Street. In 1880, seventeen-year-old Susan

was living at 33 Charter Street and working as a laundress next door at Salem Hospital. Timothy

7 ECRD Book 2669, Page 86; ECRD Plan Book 49, Plan 30-C; ECRD Book 2667, Page 519; Note: When the
Wineapples sold the Saltonstall Park property to Susan Sullivan, it was referred to as lots 1 and 2 in the deed,
however it was later referred to as simply lot 1 on the subdivision plan.
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Sullivan, a twenty-one-year-old “laborer” who was also from an Irish family, lived nearby at 5

Charter Street.8

“The old Salem Hospital at 31 Charter Street.” Salem State University Archives.

It is unclear exactly how Susan and Timothy met, however easy to imagine, given their 

physical proximity, but the two were married in Salem on January 30, 1881. The wedding was 

officiated by the Reverend William Shinnick, assistant pastor of St. James Roman Catholic

8 ECRD Book 2667, Page 519;Massachusetts Birth Records, 1840-1915 (database online), Provo, UT:
Ancestry.com Operations, Inc., 2013;Massachusetts Marriage Records, 1840-1915 (database online), Provo, UT:
Ancestry.com Operations, Inc., 2013; Salem Directory, 1864; United States Census, 1880; Salem Directory, 1880.
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Church on Federal Street. Susan and Timothy’s first child, a son named Francis, or Frank, was 

born on March 21, 1881.9

The couple’s second child, a daughter named Anna after Susan’s mother, was born in 

Salem on April 16, 1883. Tragically, Anna, or Annie, passed away in June of the same year. Her 

cause of death was recorded as “convulsions.” Just two months later, Timothy Sullivan died of 

consumption at the age of twenty-four. Anna and Timothy are both buried in St. Mary’s 

Cemetery in Salem.10

Exactly when and why she relocated isn’t clear, but by 1894, Susan was living in New 

York City. It’s possible that Salem had become too much of a reminder of her late daughter and 

husband and she desired a fresh start. In 1900, Susan and her son Francis were living in an 

apartment they rented at 324 West 57th Street, and Francis was a law school student. In 1905, 

they lived at 225 Central Park West, and Francis had become a full-fledged lawyer.11

By 1910, Susan and Francis had moved to Westchester County and were living in New 

Rochelle, New York with Francis’s wife Flora, their two-year-old son Frank Jr., and nine-month-

old daughter Louisa. Susan suffered an immense tragedy once again when her son, age thirty-

nine, passed away in North Pelham, New York on July 8, 1920. He was buried in Salem with his 

father and sister. Nearing sixty, Susan was now the last remaining member of her immediate 

family.12

12 United States Census, 1910; New York State Death Index, 1880-1956 (database online), FamilySearch.org;
Memorial page for Timothy F. Sullivan, Find a Grave.

11 New York City Directory, 1894; United States Census, 1900; New York State Census, 1905.

10 Massachusetts Birth Records, 1840-1915;Massachusetts Death Records, 1841-1915 (database online), Provo, UT:
Ancestry.com Operations, Inc., 2013; Memorial page for Timothy F. Sullivan, Find a Grave, database and images,
https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/152220219/timothy-f-sullivan.

9 Massachusetts Marriage Records, 1840-1915; Salem Directory, 1881;Massachusetts Birth Records, 1840-1915.
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It seems that grief compelled Susan to uproot herself again. She lived in Bermuda for 

several weeks in 1923, but by 1924, had returned to New York City. In May of that year, she 

applied for and was issued a passport to travel to Italy, Switzerland, France, and England. Susan 

indicated on her application that she intended to leave for Europe in late June. A passenger list 

documents her return to the Port of New York on September 12, 1924, as well as that of her 

sixteen-year-old grandson Frank Jr. and her fifteen-year-old granddaughter Louisa, who 

evidently accompanied her on the trip.13

Susan’s 1924 passport application. Ancestry.com.

13 U.S. Passport Applications, 1795-1925 (database online), Lehi, UT: Ancestry.com Operations, Inc., 2007; New
York Arriving Passenger and Crew Lists, 1820-1957 (database online), Lehi, UT: Ancestry.com Operations, Inc.,
2010.
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Susan purchased the Saltonstall Park lots in Salem on January 20, 1926. Soon afterward, 

having spent decades based in New York, she returned to her hometown, moving into a house at 

15 Leach Street. At some point, Susan hired architect William H. Hunt to design a new house for 

the lot on Lafayette Street. She and her builders, Parker & Walsh, were issued a building permit 

on April 9, 1926. It is unclear whether Susan ever moved into the house at 215 Lafayette Street, 

or if she even intended to keep it. She passed away on March 6, 1929 at the age of sixty-six, and 

is buried in St. Mary’s Cemetery, alongside her husband Timothy, her daughter Annie, and her 

son Frank. For the first time in over forty-six years, the Sullivan family were all together again.14

Advertisement for W. H. Hunt & Son architects. Salem Directory, 1926.

14 Salem Directory, 1926; ECRD Book 2667, Page 519; MACRIS, SAL.2108; 215 Lafayette Street Property Card;
Salem Directory, 1929; Memorial page for Timothy F. Sullivan, Find a Grave.
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215 Lafayette Street property card. City of Salem.

Sullivan gravesite, St. Mary’s Cemetery, Salem. FindAGrave.com.
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On September 10, 1931, local attorney William D. Chapple, trustee of the will of Susan E. 

Sullivan, sold 215 Lafayette Street to siblings Samuel A. Bixby of Santa Barbara, California; 

Henry D. Bixby of Huntington, New York; Willard G. Bixby of Baldwin, New York; and Mabel 

B. Hoyt of Salem. The deed mistakenly granted a life estate in the property to their mother, Eliza 

S. Bixby, who had passed away in 1911. Their late father, Henry M. Bixby, had remarried in 

1917, and the life estate was meant to go to his second wife, Clara D. Bixby. A second deed was 

issued in December to correct the error and, by the following year, Clara was living at 215 

Lafayette Street.15

Clara E. Delano was born in New Bedford, Massachusetts in June 1856. Her parents 

Nathaniel Delano and Evelyn Perry Delano had married a year prior. Although there was a 

considerable age difference between the two, Nathaniel was thirty-two and Evelyn was 

seventeen, it was a first marriage for both. Nathaniel, a mariner by trade, died of heart disease in 

Philadelphia in 1860 when daughter, Clara, was just four years old.16

In 1880, twenty-four-year-old Clara was boarding with a family on Hillman Street in New 

Bedford and working as a school teacher. She married a fellow teacher, Francis A. Hathaway, on 

April 7, 1882. The couple’s daughter, Evelyn, named after Clara’s mother, was born in March 

1884.17

By 1900, the Hathaways had relocated to Winchendon, Massachusetts in Worcester 

County. One year later, they were living at 4 Loring Avenue in Salem. Francis was teaching

17 United States Census, 1880;Massachusetts Marriage Records, 1840-1915; United States Census, 1900.

16 United States Census, 1900;Massachusetts Marriage Records, 1840-1915;Massachusetts Town Clerk, Vital, and
Town Records, 1626-2001 (database online), FamilySearch.org, 2020.

15 ECRD Book 2895, Page 227; New Hampshire Death Records, 1650-1969 (database online), Lehi, UT:
Ancestry.com Operations, Inc., 2021;Massachusetts Marriage Index, 1901-1955 and 1966-1970 (database online),
Provo: UT: Ancestry.com Operations, Inc., 2013; ECRD Book 2906, Page 516; Salem Directory, 1932.
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high school chemistry and in 1904, twenty-year-old Evelyn, apparently sharing her parents’ 

affinity for education, began teaching music lessons out of the family’s home. In 1905 or 1906, 

the Hathways moved to 1 Cedar Street. Francis died of appendicitis at Salem Hospital at the age 

of fifty-seven on March 20, 1914, three months before the Great Salem Fire. He is buried in 

Salem’s Greenlawn Cemetery.18

Clara and Evelyn continued living on Cedar Street until 1917, when Clara was remarried 

to retired carpet dealer Henry M. Bixby. It was a second marriage for both, Clara being about 

sixty-one years old and Henry about seventy-five. Mother and daughter moved into Henry’s 

home at 45 Summer Street, a grand house that was torn down in the 1930s to accommodate the 

construction of the Salem Post Office.19

Advertisement for Henry M. Bixby’s carpet, wallpaper, and drapery business at 242 Essex Street, Salem.
Salem Directory, 1904.

19 Salem Directories, 1915, 1916, and 1917;Massachusetts Marriage Index, 1901-1955 and 1966-1970; United
States Censuses, 1900 and 1920; Alfred Peabody House by Edwin N. Peabody, c. 1876-94, Stereoview-034, Nelson
Dionne Collection, Salem State Archives,
www.flickr.com/photos/salemstatearchives/46672372085/in/photolist-2e7h7br.

18 United States Census, 1900; Salem Directories, 1901, 1904, 1905, and 1906;Massachusetts Death Records,
1841-1915.
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The Alfred Peabody House at 45 Summer Street, Salem. Photo by Edwin N. Peabody, c. 1876-94. Salem 
State University Archives.

Clara outlived a husband for the second time when Henry passed away at home of 

myocarditis on July 11, 1923 at the age of eighty-one. She and Evelyn remained at 45 Summer 

Street until Henry’s children purchased the house at 215 Lafayette Street in 1931, granting Clara 

the life estate. Clara and her daughter, who continued to teach music lessons, lived at 215 

Lafayette Street until Clara’s death in 1941 at about eighty-five years of age. Before the year’s 

end, Henry M. Bixby’s heirs sold 215 Lafayette Street to Symon C. Polansky of Salem. Evelyn 

moved to an apartment at 239 Lafayette Street.20

Symon C. Polansky was born on April 16, 1898 to a Jewish family in a part of Russia that 

today is in Poland. His father immigrated to the United States in 1900, and was followed by 

Symon and the rest of the family in 1904 when Symon was five or six years old. The Polanskys 

probably sailed to New York first, because Symon’s youngest sister was born there the following

20 Massachusetts State Vital Records, 1841-1925 (database online), FamilySearch.org, 2022; Salem Directories 1923
through 1942; ECRD Book 2895, Page 227; ECRD Book 2906, Page 516;Massachusetts Death Index, 1901-1980
(database online), Provo, UT: Ancestry.com Operations, Inc., 2013; United States Census, 1900; ECRD Book 3264,
Pages 344-346.
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year. By 1910, Symon was living at 28 Norman Street in Salem with his thirty-eight-year-old 

father Abraham, thirty-five-year-old mother Dora, seventeen-year-old sister Minnie,

fifteen-year-old brother Issy, thirteen-year-old brother Samuel, and five-year-old sister Rose. 

Abraham was employed as a “pedler.”21

Symon became a U. S. citizen in 1918, and in September of that year, at the tail end of 

World War I, he registered for the draft. He was twenty years old and his draft card describes him 

as being of medium height and build with brown eyes and black hair. He was drafted into the 

Army on October 14, 1918. World War I ended on November 11, 1918, and Symon was 

discharged on December 7th of the same year.22

By 1920, Symon was living on Hancock Street with his parents and his sister Rose. Both 

the 1920 and 1921 editions of the Salem Directory list him as a “student,” and this is surely the 

period of time when he was studying at Tufts Dental School. By 1922, Symon was a dentist with 

a practice located in the Odell Block at 60 Washington Street, a building that still stands today.23

It seems that throughout the 1920s and 1930s, Symon continued to live with his family 

while working at his dental practice and gaining recognition as a dental surgeon at both Beth 

Israel and Massachusetts General Hospital. He was also involved in Salem’s local Jewish

23 United States Census, 1920; Salem Directories, 1920, 1921, and 1922; Jewish Advocate (1909-1990), Jan. 24,
1941, ProQuest Historical Newspapers: The Jewish Advocate, pg. 8.

22 United States Census, 1920; U.S. World War I Draft Registration Cards, 1917-1918 (database online), Provo, UT:
Ancestry.com Operations, Inc., 2005; U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs BIRLS Death File, 1850-2010 (database
online), Provo, UT: Ancestry.com Operations, Inc., 2011.

21 Memorial page for Symon C. Polansky, Find a Grave, database and images,
https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/139657599/symon-charles-polansky; United States Censuses, 1910 and
1920.
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community, being elected president of the Salem Lodge of B’nai Brith in 1939. In 1940, at the 

age of forty-two, Symon was engaged to twenty-four-year-old Louise Enid Cohen.24

Louise was born in Massachusetts on February 9, 1916 to Julius and Alice Cohen. She 

joined an older brother named Morris, who was also born in Massachusetts. Julius and Alice were 

originally from Russia and spoke Yiddish, just like Symon and his parents. The Cohen family 

had previously lived in Chelsea, where Louise attended high school, but by 1940, they were 

living in Brookline. Louise was a graduate of the School of Social Work at Simmons College and 

employed in the field of medical social work in Massachusetts and also at the Jewish Hospital in 

Brooklyn, New York.25

Louise Enid Cohen’s photo in the 1937 Simmons College yearbook. Ancestry.com.

25 Memorial page for Symon C. Polansky, Find a Grave; United States Censuses, 1920 and 1930; U.S. School
Yearbooks, 1880-2012, Simmons College, 1937; Jewish Advocate (1909-1990), Jan. 24, 1941.

24 United States Censuses, 1930 and 1940; Jewish Advocate (1909-1990), Jan. 24, 1941; Jewish Advocate
(1909-1990), Apr. 7, 1939, ProQuest Historical Newspapers: The Jewish Advocate, pg. 7; Jewish Advocate
(1909-1990), Dec. 13, 1940, ProQuest Historical Newspapers: The Jewish Advocate, pg. 10.
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Symon and Louise were married at the Sheraton in Boston on January 12, 1941. In July 

of that year, Symon purchased their future family home at 215 Lafayette Street. It appears that 

the couple did not move in immediately, as the 1942 Salem Directory lists them at 16 Cherry 

Street and shows that 215 Lafayette was vacant.26

On February 14, 1942, as World War II raged in his homeland in Europe, Symon was 

again required to register for the draft. He was forty-three years old, born during a time when 

U.S. military drafts took place for both world wars. It is unclear, however, whether he actually 

was called up during the Second World War. 

Symon C. Polansky’s World War II draft registration card. Ancestry.com

26 Jewish Advocate (1909-1990), Jan. 24, 1941; ECRD Book 3264, Pages 344-346; Salem Directory, 1942.
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By 1943, Symon and Louise were living in their new house in Saltonstall Park. Their son 

Andrew was born on August 16, 1946, and their daughter Angela followed on August 6, 1953. 

Both attended Salem High School. Like his father, Andrew enlisted in the Army. He was 

tragically killed as a passenger in an auto accident at Fort Knox in Kentucky on May 26, 1968 at 

just twenty-one years old. Angela went on to attend Simmons College like her mother, and in her 

junior year, studied abroad in Spain. Sometime after college, she moved to Sherman Oaks, 

California, where she was engaged to Michael Braver in 1979.27

To this day, no family has lived in the house at 215 Lafayette Street longer than the 

Polanskys did. Symon lived there until his death at the age of ninety-three on January 6, 1992. 

Eight years later, Angela Polansky Braver, as Trustee of the 215 Lafayette Street Nominee Trust, 

sold the family’s longtime home to Daniel J. Thibodeau and Eve Laubner. Her mother Louise 

passed away on November 30, 2014 at the age of ninety-eight. She is buried beside her husband 

at the Sons of Jacob Cemetery in Danvers.28

27 Salem Directory, 1943; Memorial page for Andrew D. Polansky, Find a Grave, database and images,
https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/188748196/andrew-d-polansky; U.S. Public Records Index, 1950-1993, 
Volume 2 (database online),  Lehi, UT: Ancestry.com Operations, Inc., 2010; U.S. School Yearbooks, 1880-2012, 
Salem High School, 1964 and 1971; Boston Globe (1960-), May 28, 1968, ProQuest Historical Newspapers: The 
Boston Globe, pg. 43; Jewish Advocate (1909-1990), Mar. 7, 1974, ProQuest Historical Newspapers: The Jewish 
Advocate, pg. A2; Boston Globe (1960-), Aug. 5, 1979, ProQuest Historical Newspapers: The Boston Globe, pg. 49. 
28 The Boston Globe, January 8, 1992; ECRD Book 16173, Page 216; Memorial page for Symon C. Polansky, Find a 
Grave.
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Polansky gravesite, Sons of Jacob Cemetery, Danvers. FindAGrave.com.



CHAIN OF TITLE, 215 LAFAYETTE STREET, SALEM, ESSEX COUNTY, MASSACHUSETTS 
Date of 

Transaction Date Recorded Grantor(s) Grantee(s) Consideration Conveyance of Source Book : Page Notes

December 30, 1925 January 6, 1926 The City Orphan Asylum of Salem
Charles Wineapple, Maurice 
Wineapple, and Joseph Wineapple of 
Salem

"consideration 
paid"

"a certain parcel of land situated on Lafayette Street, in said SALEM, and bounded 
and described as follows: Beginning at a point on Lafayette Street, at the 
Northwesterly corner of the lot herein described at land now owned by the City of 
Salem; thence running Easterly by the Southerly line of the City land, passing 
through a bound stone and extending to high water mark, a distance of 527.50 feet; 
thence running Southerly, Westerly and Southerly by said high water mark about 188 
feet; thence running Easterly by a stone wall and high water mark 66 feet to the 
corner of said wall; thence running Southerly by said wall 7.46 feet to land now or 
formerly of the Estate of S. V. Goodhue; thence running Westerly by the Northerly 
line of said Goodhue's land passing through a stone bound and running to the Easterly 
line of Lafayette Street at the Northwesterly corner of said Goodhue's Estate 582 feet; 
thence running Northerly by Lafayette Street 211.90 feet to the point of beginnging. 
Containing 95,850 square feet."

Essex County 
Registry of 
Deeds (ECRD)

2669 : 86

January 20, 1926 January 20, 1926
Charles Wineapple, Maurice 
Wineapple, and Joseph Wineapple of 
Salem

Susan E. Sullivan of New York City, 
NY

"consideration 
paid"

"A certain parcel of land situated in said SALEM, bounded and described as follows: 
Westerly by Lafayette Street eighty five and 94/100 (85.94) feet, Northerly by land 
now or late of the City of Salem eighty (80) feet, Easterly by Lot 3 on plan 
hereinafter referred to eighty three (83) feet, and Southerly by a new street forty feet 
in width, eighty (80) feet; being lots 1 and 2 on a plan to be recorded in Essex South 
District Registry of Deeds, and being a portion of the premises conveyed to us by a 
deed of the City Orphan Asylum dated December 30, 1925 . . . "

ECRD 2667 : 519

September 10, 1931 September 10, 1931
William D. Chapple of Salem, Trustee 
of the will of Susan E. Sullivan, late of 
Salem

Samuel A. Bixby of Santa Barbara, 
CA, 
Henry D. Bixby of Huntington, NY, 
Willard G. Bixby of Baldwin, NY, 
Mabel B. Hoyt of Salem, 
and Eliza S. Bixby of Salem

$14,000.00
"a certain parcel of land with the buildings thereon situate in said SALEM and 
bounded and described as follows: Westerly by Lafayette Street eighty-five and 
94/100 (85.94) feet . . . "

ECRD 2895 : 227
Same lot (now with buildings 
mentioned), but here and on the plan it is 
now described as lot 1, not lots 1 and 2.

December 30, 1931 December 30, 1931

Samuel A. Bixby of Santa Barbara, 
CA, 
Willard G. Bixby of Baldwin, NY, 
Henry D. Bixby of Huntington, NY, 
and 
W. Everett & Mabel B. Hoyt of Salem

Clara D. Bixby of Salem "consideration 
paid"

"a certain parcel of land with the buildings thereon situate in said SALEM and 
bounded and described as follows: Westerly by Lafayette Street eighty-five and 
94/100 (85.94) feet . . . "

ECRD 2906 : 516

This deed conveys a life estate in the 
property to Clara D. Bixby, the second 
wife of Henry M. Bixby. It was issued as 
a correction to the deed above, in which 
the life estate was mistakenly granted to 
Eliza S. Bixby, Henry M. Bixby's first 
wife, who was by then deceased.

July 15, 1941 August 6, 1941 Clark O. Noble of Pasadena, CA Henry D. Bixby of Huntington, NY "consideration 
paid"

"a certain parcel of land with the buildings thereon situate in SALEM, Massachusetts, 
and bounded and described as follows: Westerly by Lafayette Street eighty-five and 
94/100 (85.94) feet . . . "

ECRD 3264 : 344
Clark O. Noble was the son of Helen St. 
Clair Bixby, who was the widow of 
Samuel A. Bixby

July 22, 1941 August 6, 1941 Henry D. Bixby of Huntington, NY 
and Mabel B. Hoyt of Salem Symon C. Polansky of Salem "consideration 

paid"

"All our right, title and interest in a certain parcel of land with the buildings thereon, 
situate in said SALEM and bounded and described as follows: Westerly by Lafayette 
Street eighty-five and 94/100 (85.94) feet . . . "

ECRD 3264 : 346 "Clara D. Bixby, widow of our late 
father . . . being now deceased."

July 24, 1941 August 6, 1941 Ida E. Bixby of Baldwin, NY, widow 
of Willard G. Bixby Symon C. Polansky of Salem "consideration 

paid"

"All my right, title and interest in A certain parcel of land with the buildings thereon 
situate in said SALEM, and bounded and described as follows: Westerly by Lafayette 
Street eighty-five and 94/100 (85.94) feet . . . "

ECRD 3264 : 345

July 7, 1965 July 8, 1965 Symon C. Polansky of Salem Symon C. & Louise E. Polansky of 
Salem

"consideration 
paid"

"the land in said Salem together with the buildings thereon bounded and described, as 
follows: WESTERLY by Lafayette Street eighty-five and 94/100 (85.94) feet . . . " ECRD 5283 : 151

August 18, 1983 August 19, 1983 Symon C. & Louise E. Polansky of 
Salem Louise E. Polansky of Salem $100.00

"a certain parcel of land with the buildings thereon situate in said Salem, and bounded 
and described as follows: WESTERLY by Lafayette Street eighty-five and 94/100 
(85.94) feet . . . "

ECRD 7194 : 143

November 28, 1983 November 29, 1983 Symon C. & Louise E. Polansky of 
Salem Louise E. Polansky of Salem $100.00

"a certain parcel of land with the buildings thereon situate in said Salem, and bounded 
and described as follows: WESTERLY by Lafayette Street eighty-five and 94/100 
(85.94) feet . . . "

ECRD 7279 : 68

This deed was issued as a correction to 
the above deed, in which Louise 
Polansky's address was mistakenly given 
as 250 Lafayette Street instead of 215 
Lafayette Street.

October 19, 1990 October 23, 1990 Louise E. Polansky of Salem
Louise E. Polansky, Trustee of the 215 
Lafayette Street, Salem, Nominee 
Trust

"less than $100.00"
"a certain parcel of land with the buildings thereon numbered 215 Lafayette Street, 
situate in said Salem, and bounded and described as follows: WESTERLY by 
Lafayette Street eighty-five and 94/100 (85.94) feet . . . "

ECRD 10605 : 278

January 26, 2000 January 28, 2000
Angela Polansky Braver, Trustee of 
the 215 Lafayette Street, Salem, 
Nominee Trust, of Studio City, CA

Daniel J. Thibodeau and Eve Laubner 
of Salem $280,000.00

"A certain parcel of land with the buildings thereon numbered 215 Lafayette Street, 
situate in Salem, and bounded and described as follows: WESTERLY by Lafayette 
Street, eighty-five and 94/100 (85.94) feet . . . "

ECRD 16173 : 216






































